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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

House or Commons, Room 497,
Fripay, May 9, 1947.

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met at 11.30 o’clock, a.m.
The Vice-Chairman, Mr. Gordon B. Isnor. presided

Members present: Messrs. Burton. Case, Cleaver, Coté (Verdun), Cloutier,
Cruickshank, Fleming, Fraser, Gladstone, Golding, Green, Isnor, Jaenicke,
Marshall, Probe, Raymond (Wright), Rinfret, Smith (Calgary West), Stuart
(Charlotte), Thatcher, Warren, Winkler.

In attendance: Dr. E. H. Coleman. C.M.G., K.C., Deputy Custodian of
Enemy Property; Mr. F. G. Shears, Director Vancouver Office; Mr. K. W.
Wright, Counsel.

The Committee resumed examination of Mr. Shears respecting the admini-
stration of the Vancouver Office of the Custodian.

Mr. Jaenicke tabled certain documents relating to inventory of chattels
left on property of, and owned by, one named Naochi Karatsu. The witness.
Mr. Shears, was questioned thereon and, after some discussion, he agreed to
supply the Committee, at the earliest possible moment, with a full report on
the said matter.

The witness also agreed to supply the Committee with certain information
relating to the sale of certain evacuees’ lands requested by Mr. Cruickshank
and Mr. Fleming.

At 1.05 o'clock p.m., the Committee adjourned to meet again at 11 o’clock
a.m., Monday, May 12, 1947.

ANTOINE CHASSE,
Acting Clerk of the Committee.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

Hovuse or ComMons,
May 9, 1947.

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met this day at 1130 a.m.
The Vice-Chairman, Mr. Gordon B. Isnor, presided.

The: Vice-Crairman: Gentlemen, shall we come to order. We have the
necessary number to form a quorum and unless there is other business to be
brought before the meeting we will continue to hear Mr. Shears

Frank G. Shears, Director of the Office of the Custodian, Vancouver,
recalled:

VITN Mr. Chairman, I think I would like to. make one brief
statement in elarification of <r=z::«~t? ing which was m“minne,wl yvesterday. In
regard to the sale of the properties in the Fraser Valley area a question was
to what was the a rage price. I think Ihr figure given was about
$1,130. I do not think that is quite a fair picture of that deal because I have
an individual list here and there was a property that sold for $10,768, another
for $7,200, another for $5,500, and three others at $4,500, $3.000 and $2.000. There
were also a m!mh(-" of properties that 1

asked as

brought very small amounts such as
$125, $200, $400, so that in saying the averase was $1,130, it re ally does not
give a picture. I J‘Y,\r wish to indicate that in that group of properties there were
varying types and the prices varied considerably. I would like to mention
that for the purpose of the reeord.

'Hm Vice-Cramrvan: All right, Mr. Cote?

By Mr. Cote:

Yesterday, Mr. Shears referred to some advisory eommittees that had
been set up for the purpose of assisting the custodian’s office in Vancouver in
carrying out the duties and policies of the custodian. How many committees
did you say, Mr. Shears, were set up for this purpose?—A. There were two
advisory committees. One (nnvn\if‘(r'“ concerned itself with what we call the
greater Vancouver properties and the other concerned itself with the properties
outside that area. The greater \.uwvu\m area committee was presided over
by Mr. Justice Sidney Smith, and the other one was presided over by Judge
Whiteside.

Q. Were they both in the city of Vancouver?—A. No, the greater Vancouver
advisory committee sat in Vancouver, usually in Mr. Justice Sidney Smith’s
office. The other eommittee, except for a few initial meetings in Vancouver.
always sat at New Westminster and usually sat in the Judge’s office. Mayor
Mott of New Westminster was also one of the advisory committee members.

Q. How many members were in each of these committees?—A. T will just
give vou the exact set-up. Two independent committees were established. One
was known as the advisory committee for the oreater Vancouver properties and
the following members were appointed to the committee on March 8. 1943:
[Tonourable Mr. Justice Sidney Smith, the chairman. of the Appellate Court of
British Columbia; Alderman Charles Jones. and Mr. Kishizo Kimura. Mr.
Kimura resigned on July 20, 1943. - The other committee was known as the
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Q. Now did you start liquidating the
evacuation was completed?—A, No.
sold previous to the evacuation were
anese themselves,

assets of the evacuees before the
not at all. The only properties that were
the properties which were sold by the Jap-
The policy of liquidation, as a matter of fact, did not come
into effect until the 19th of July, 1943. That was the date when the tenders first
closed for the properties which were advertised. That is of course apart from
the sale which was made to the director of the Veterans’ Land Act.

Q. I heard you say yesterday, Mr. Shears,

that one of the complaints that
you received from the evacuees was t]

1at they were absent when their property
was sold. Did you receive a great number of protests of that kind?—A. Yes,
we did. ‘AS I intimated yesterday there were two types of complaints. A con-
siderable number of the complaints simply said, “We do not wish to have our
property sold,” or “We do not wish thaf it shall be liquidated.” Then there
were a number of Japanese who wrote to the office and said, “Not only do we
not wish our property to he sold, but having been sold we do not think that the
amounts realized have been adequate.” In some cases they mention in their
letters that they thought the price should have been such and such. Just broadly
speaking, there were those two types of letters and they have all been acknowl-
edged by the department stating that their letters remain on the record and we
indicated that we were carrying out a policy which had been outlined by the
government.

Q. Were they individually notified when tenders were ¢
for the sale of real properties and when their chattels were
any of their other assets were to be sold?—A. No, not at all.

Q. Could they have had any way of following the procedure of the cus-
todian in the disposition of their own personal assets?—A. No, I would not say
they could. They were not living in the area and of course they were all aware
of the policy of evacuation. The Japanese had the option of having anythine
that they wished shipped to them. That was not real property of course but it
applied as far as household chattels .and S0 on were concerned. Those things
were available on request. They were also aware that the policy of liquidation
of chattels was coming into effect. The policy was widely known in the camps
in which they were living, and they knew their goods were to be sold under the
government’s policy.

Q. What did you mean Mr. Shears when
of their assets shipped to them?—A. If. by any chance, they wanted all'their
furniture or everything they owned they could have had it shipped but we did
not have any requests for shipment. T think one of the reasons for that would
be that a lot of it would never have justified the cost of shipment. Up until
those household effects were sold by auction the custodian was willing and ready
at any time to ship the goods to the Japanese. I know that in some cases we
have shipped certain quantities.

Mr. CruickSHANK: At whose expense?

The Wrtness: At the expense of the

By Mr. Cote:

Q. Where were the goods shipped?—A. To the place where
residing.

lled, for instance,
to be sold or when

you stated they could have some

Japanese.

they were
In regard to the Japanese that were living in what they called the
interior housing settlements, they were provided with all that was considered
necessary to provide a home and subsistence. If they wanted anything further
we shipped it in co-operation with the Department of Labour. ‘If they requested
shipment they were advised that they would have to take care of the charges but
that the goods were available for shipment at any time.
Q. Did you have a substantial

number of requests for shipment?-—A. No,
Just a limited number.
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Q. Now after any assets }u\(‘l been (!isl?)«'»sml ur!“"\\'vlv‘("ﬂuv‘ .]:l]):\l](;‘.\'(} indiyidually
notified as to the proceeds of those ;zllos:-‘»f—.r\.;‘l‘w_\I'{:iu‘lvv .-lHT}lm-n mmﬁg(l, 1
W;ﬁlld not care to say that thev were m,m;“:.d ‘\‘]1],11.1“1}1:13:1‘\ : .1?7 :w(‘nunt'mg of
all those items was considerable but they were ‘ l%l]l'h.llf\, \ Vl)lllllh(‘(l. and in fact
long since. every Japanese hz‘us '11:1(1 nismtwm‘(:m nT‘ vn.\‘ :‘uwmm. ‘If he has not
had a statement it is an omission. The statements were made in many  cases
continually, starting from his first balance and ('<>171\1lmvnn‘g‘m] up to his present
balance. I would say that if any Japanese requested ml}nnmuun he was given
immediate consideration but if he did not request it he \wnlr} only get it in the
normal course and there would be some little delay. However, there was no
purposeful delay in not revealing to him what his credit was if his goods had
been sold.

The Vice-Cuairman: Mr. Cote, I ‘1‘”, not 1‘\'1‘14:\\' how ']]111('11 more you have to
take up but-I am keeping in mind the ruling which T made yesterday.

Mr. Core: I am very sorry, but I am about through.

The Vice-Cramyvan: I do not want to interrupt but I am just trying to live
up to what I said.

By Mr. Cote: ‘ '

Q. I will be very brief- I was going to ask, Mr. Shears, about what he said
in regard to the complete record of the Japanese. I am wondering how you would
learn of the new places in which they were living?—A. I did not get the import
of that. ; <

Q. I say that on the 19th of July when you first closed off 11}\0 tenders, you
could not at the time have communicated with each and all of the evacuees
because you were not at that time aware of their addresses—A. We did not
communicate with any of them. :

Q. But later on you did?—A. We were aware of the addresses of these
Japanese at all times by inquiries which we were able to make through- the
Department of Labour and our files were kept definitely up to date \\'nh_ respect
to the location of these Japanese. Our department had no concern with that
matter but we had all the information that we wanted at any time with respeet to
where any Japanese was living. .

Q. I understand you opened individual accounts for each 01}11(@0 evacuees
from the moment that you had something on deposit?—A. Yes, we opened
individual accounts for every Japanese who had any money to his credit.

The Viee-Crmamvax: You are next Mr. Jaenicke.

By Mr. Jaenicke:

Q. I was just going to follow up some of the matters brought out by Mr.
Cote. I have here an example of some of the goods and chattels handled. I am
predicating my remarks by saying we heard Mr. Shears yesterday on the diffi-
culty that his office had in keeping track of the goods and chattels and that
there was a lot of theft and vandalism and things of that nature. However,
think the committee should have some information on this particular case and I
should like, after T am through, to have Mr. Shears comment on it. I ha\'e. here
& copy of an inventory of a Japanese by the name of Maochi Karatsu, registia=
tion number 12051, and file number 8666. This inve ntory is an inventory 0
all his goods and chattels which was compiled by this Japanese in the presence
of a Mr. W. E. Anderson of your office, I believe he is in the farm department of
your office—A. What date is that, may I ask? i

Q. October 28, 1942. My information is this Japanese was still at that time
at his home and that is where this inventory was made. All the goods and
chattels were valued in the presence of and apparently with the consent of M
Anderson and I think the valuation is reasonable. Chairs are valued at $1 apiecé
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some at 50 cents apiece, and they are very small valuations. A box contained a
quantity of fishing tackle valued at $160 including one good condition high-
tension magnet, the cost of which was $80. There was a one-quart water kent
coil which cost $15; one dozen bearines $15: ten sprockets, $12; twelve paint
brushes, $30. Another large item iz a tool-box containing fishing gear for
commercial purposes. Two hundred fathoms of stainless trolling wire, (cost
$30) ; one hundred new fish-hooks for pilehard bait, (cost $7.50): two hundred
spoon hooks, (cost $70). The total valuation of the articles contained in that
box wa )7.50. The other valuations on the inventory are just small, ranging
anywhere from 15 cents to about $5.00. The total valuation on this inventory
is $723.45. Apparently on March 15 this Japanese, Mr. Karatsu, wrote to the
office requesting that certain articles be sent to him. I may say certain articles
were sent to him according to the inventory, including three steel bedsprings
which were sent, but which, by the way, were valued at $2. Also a chesterfield
chair which had no valuation on this inventory was sent. Apparently he
requested some furtl

irther articles to be sent to him and on Mareh 15, 1947 he
received a letter from the office of Mr. Shears, sioned by Mr. W. E. Anderson
reading in part as follows:

In reply to your letter of March 15 in which vou ask that certain
chattels be sent to you, we have to advise that we are unable to ship
these articles as some have been sold at auction and others are migsing.
The books were badly mildewed and damaged and were discarded as
being of no value. We are enclosing an itemized statement of the
articles sold at auction and. the balance not shown on this sheet were
either stolen, or damaged and declared of no value.

Referring to your enquiry as to expenses against your boats: these
expenses are proportionate charges covering supervision, insurance and
survey expenses actually paid out. No office expenses or commission on
the sales have been charged.

Your account has now been credited with the sum of $43.50 repre-
senting $21.75 on each boat covering a transportation elaim from Steves-
ton to Tofino. These amounts have been credited as it is understood
that you delivered one boat and paid the expenses on the other one on
the trip down and return to Tofino. We would appreciate your confir-
mation that this is correct.

A statement of your account is enclosed and these funds are available
to you on request.

Yours truly,

I may say I mention nothing about the boats but I simply refer to the
goods and chattels of which I gave you a description and an explanation of
the inventory. Now here is the statement of the goods and chattels which
were sold by auction at Mission, B.C., on March 7, 1945. The total is given
as $10.40. On an inventory that was originally $723. There was an expense
of $4.04 against it leaving a;balance of $6.36 for this inventory. Now as I say,
Mr., Shears has explained there has been a lot of theft and vandalism going on
but I shold like to put these doeuments on the record if the committee wishes
so that in the end we may make some recommendation to the House or to the
government that cases like this may be looked into and that justice be done
to some of these Japanese whose property has been disposed of in such a way.
I should like to hear Mr. Shear’s comments.

. Mr. Guapstone: Was your statement in error in one respect, as you gave
it, Mr. Jaenicke? That is did the realization of $10 against the original value
of $700 include boats.
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Mr. Jaexicke: No, does not include boats.
would put the statement on the record.

Mr. CrutcksHANK: Was this appraisal done in the presence of Mr. Ander-
son?

Mr. JAENICKE: Yes.

Mr. CruicksHANK: I just want the point perfectly clear. It ~'hould be
definite that Mr. Anderson was an official employee of the custodian’s branch
and he was present when the original estimate was made

The Vice-Cuamrman: May I suggest, Mr. Cruickshank, that you ask that
question of Mr. Shears.

Mr. CruicksHANK: Mr. Jaenicke has just made the statement and this
happens to-be in my riding and I have been accused of a lot of thines in

% w “ ! B5°
connection with the Japanese so I would like to know.

Mr. JaenickE: I am not accusing you of anything.

Mr. CruicksHANK: Just a moment, Mr. Chairman, if the valuation of
the Japanese property was prepared by an officer of the government and was
approved as $700 and the Japanese only got $10 out of it, I am very much
interested. :

If the committee likes I

The Vice-Cramrman: Would you be good enough to table that inventory Mr
Jaenicke? -

Mr. JaeNicke: Yes.

Mr. Core: Before there is any motion put I would like to sav this.

The Vice-CramrMAN: There is no motion.

Mr. Core: But we had better hear Mr. Sheax
_ The Wrrness: Mr. Chairman, and gentlemen, I think you will appreciate
it is not possible for me to have all the details nf any specific case which you
may bring to my attention. However, I would like to say this in reeard to
what has been read by Mr. Jacnicke. Mr. Anderson was an ('1111)1;»\'0(‘ of
the office of the custodian. Never, at any time, did he have any authority
nor did he attempt in any way to value any properties. If the Japanese was
with him at that time, and it does seem rather likely, it is possible that he was
in the area, if he were there at the time the inventory would probably be
made when they were together. It is quite possible they listed all the articles
together. The placing of any price against those articles would, however, be
(nmcl\ the responsibility of the Japanese and no consent or approval in any
\Impv or form would have been given by Mr. Anderson because that has been
quite a distinet rule in our de partment. Mr. Anderson is not an appraiser.
I think probably, because of his contacts with Japanese property, he has a
}})T“({\xt(\‘zjqi‘[(;;:;t J;}l\ll[ _W(ml(!' 112'1\'(". or than some of you mml(mcn would have.
le was lere 1 any way to place prices on articles sold. I admit, if
those figures are in any way accurate there seems to be a wide cap between

what they were sold for and the original valuation. The point would be, what
articles were actually sold of the original list?

. e 4 A number of them, for some
reason (:1] other, would not seem to have been sold at all. A specific analysis
of the file would be necessary to reveal all the facts.

] t\[] ('OTF: Would it be possible to oet some information on this particular
potm' B NOL & o very interested.. I understand you are about tn leave to
](S }Im o t]]m coast but would it be possible to send to the chairman or tu Doctor

oleman all the particulars and facts pertaining to this particular case?

i ’1]‘110 Wirrness: T would certainly be willing to do that. The only thing
which crosses my mind, and I think I am in order in saying this, is it has been

indicated has it mot, on the floor of the House, by the minister, that active
consideration of claims is under way

Would that not be the time when the
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details of specific cases would be of greatest use. However if any particular case
is requested we would only be too happy to supply the details. :

Mr. Core: If you require a motion 1 would be glad to put it.

Mr. Smita: Even at $700, and taking the value at half of that, ln you not
think the committee should have some explanation. If you just take the “articles
which have been read off by Mr. Jaenicke, and, using our own figures as to what
they might be worth, there is a discrepancy. A man gets less than $10 for the
whole lot, and I think some explanation should be forthcoming.

Mr. JAENICKE:

Mr. Cote: I would be quite prepared to move that you send these particulars
on to the chairman, Mr. Shears, leaving it to the chairman and to his steering
committee to decide whether it is worth while .opening a discussion on the
particular case in the full committee.

Mr. Fraser: 1 wonder if the witness would say whether any other occasions
such as this have come to his attention, where the depreciation has gone on to
this extent.

The Writngss: Yes, I would say that is true. I would say this too. It will
be without a doubt possible for you to introduce some cases along the line of
that which has now been indicated but there will be thousands where you will
not find the same situation. I am not making this as a definite statement in
regard to this particular case because I am not in a position to do so but just
supposing it was shown the articles sold fetched a fair value for what was sold,
and all the other articles disappeared. That would have been one of these
cases, I admit, an extreme one, where our file might reveal something with regard
to the disappearance by t theft of all the articles. I do not want the (’onnniﬁoc
to get the impression that in many cases everything in the house had dis-
appeared. I am taking this as an extreme case. Possibly if such a considerable
amount of goods were short of the amount of goods wl hich were sold, the answer
would be that the goods had been stolen.

Mr. Fraser: In this case you mentioned and these other cases, were these
mventories made by men of your department or how were they made

The Wirness: In some cases they were supplied in thie eriginal de ln ation,
then at a later date our men, as and when it was possible for them to do so, went
around to all these various farms and checked up on the articles that were there.
In this particular case it would appear Mr. Anderson was there when the
Japanese was there and that would be proof positive that these articles were
there. Tt would not, in my judgment, be proof positive of their value. It may
or it may not have been right.

Mr. Fueming: Mr. Chairman, I have a number of questions but to spread
this around among the members quickly, I will confine myself to just one phase.

The Vice-CHAIRMAN: Is it on this particular question?

Mr. FLeming: No, I want to turn now to the Fraser Valley farms.

The Vice-CramMman: May we dispose of this first? Is it your request that
the Chairman ask Doctor Coleman or Mr. Shears to give us further information
with respect to this particular case?

Agreed.

Mr. Prose: Mr. Chairman, I think the information contained there in the
documents given to you by Mr. Jaenicke should be retained on the 1(‘('01‘(1
As T understand it th 1t inventory form is the regulair form of the custodi ian’s
branch or a copy of It looks as though it has some official value and
I believe the thing slmuld be printed as it is there and reference made later
on to it. 5

You can see for yourself the values are very reasonable.
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Mr. CrurcksuAaNK: I would like to follow that up. I am also interested
in this Fraser Valley. I think every member wants to do the fair thing by the
Japanese. We may have been indiscreet m some tlnnu"s_ but not with respect
to the value of goods taken. I do not know how much is involved, there may
be hundreds of thousands of dollars, T eannot say.. However, with my limited
experience in Ottawa I do not see that lfm.,-n‘ 18 :_!fo'vp:}ll’[i(‘\ll:ll‘ rush for
Mr. Shears to return to British Columbia. It is a delightful country out there
at any time of the year and I would like to be there myself now, but if there
are hundreds of thousands of dollars involved I am not particular whether
Mr. Shears goes back to British Columbia to-morrow or a month from now.
Az I understand it, the minister made a statement in the House that adjustments
were necessary and they would have to be made. I think this committee is
set up for the purpose of discovering whether any injustice has been done and,
we are then to make our recommendation. I think we are entitled to all the
information we can get and I am not particularly worried about Mr. Shears
going back to Vancouver. I would like to go back tomorrow, as I said. After
all. Mr. Shears is an official and I think this committee should have whatever
information is necessary from Vancouver. Mr. Shears might get that information
and explain it to us when he gets it.

The Vice-Cuamman: I assure you, Mr. Cruickshank, that Mr. Shears will
be kept here until such time as the committee decides (11!101*}\;&.\‘(\ _T mentioned
that he was from British Columbia and the governement is anxious that he
return as quickly as possible but that is not sooner than he is able.

Mr. CruicksuANK: I would like to have this information as brought out
by Mr. Jaenicke. I do not know whether it is correct and I do not think
Mr. Jaenicke knows whether it is correct but I would like to have details and
information brought from the office in Vancouver in order to have Mr. Shears
explain it to this committee.

The Vice-CuamrMAN: You shall have that information.

Mr. Corr: Speaking to that request, Mr. Chairman, I rather think it would
be more advisable, before printing the inventory tabled by Mr. Jaenicke,
and the other documents, that we get the full reports on the other side of the
picture and if necessary at that time we can have the whole thing printed in
the same minutes of evidence.

Mr. Jaenicke: The only thing is, it will give you information as to the
valuation of these articles and you can form your own opinions.

Mr. Core: That is an individual ease, Mr. Jaenicke. If it was a matter of
higher poliey you would be quite right, but this is an individual case. There
may be a full explanation to aceount for this particular case and it would
be unfair to let all this go into the minutes of evidence here without a proper
answer which Mr. Shears is not in a position to give today.

The Wirngss: Just for the purpose of the record it is written right at
the top of this sheet, “List made by custodian, owner’s valuation added”. I am
merely putting that down for the purpose of the record. I definitely do not
agree that this is a valuation made by an employee in my office.

. Mr. Jaenicke: I did not say that.

Mr. Freminag: We all understand that.

Mr. Smrra: Mr. Chairman, if we are going to print anything it should
be printed in one piece, that is the only fair way.

The Cramrman: In the meantime, we will table it and the clerk will be
the custodian of the papers.

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. Mr. Chairman, may I ask a group of questions in regard to the farms
of the Fraser Valley area? As I followed the evidence given by Mr. Shears
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yesterday it indicated that in this group of farms there was a total of 769 of
which about 20 were not in the Fraser Valley—A. Yes. I said that. There
may have been 30 to 40 relatively the bulk of them were in the Fraser Valley.

Q. Were those outside the Fraser Valley included in the sale to the
Soldiers’ Settlement Board?—A. Definitely yes. They were in the same offer
but some of them were on the mainland and there were a few over on Vancouver
Island but it was quite a limited number.

Q. The Soldiers” Settlement Board got the full 769 for the price which you
mentioned yesterday, namely $836,0007—A. No, excuse me, I think we should
have this just right. There was an offer on 768 parcels. That was the original
offer. There was a subsequent offer.

Q. What was the amount of that offer?—A. That was an offer from the
Soldiers’ Settlement Board?—A. Yes, 768 parcels, and the offer was $750,000.
It was raised to $850,000 and that is the point, gentlemen, that we have got to
make clear. The offer was for 768 parcels but we were not able to deliver title to
all those 768 parcels.

An Hon. MemBER: For what reason?

The Wirness: I will come to that in a minute. There were 768 parcels in
the first offer; 55 properties in a second offer which was considered by the
advisory committees; and we had to withdraw some 60 odd properties and the
actual number finally sold to the Veterans’ Land Act was 741. The reason for
the withdrawal of those 60 parcels was in part this: 20 of them, approximately,
had no Japanese interest at all. The other-41, in a number of cases, were in
the name of a deceased Japanese and the sale of that property had to be handled
through an official administrator. In some cases there were encumbrances
against the property greater than the Veterans’ Land Act offer and for that
reason they were withdrawn. When the sale was consummated in was consum-
mated on the basis of an acceptable offer of $850,000 against $867,000 valuation
of the properties in the first offer. Could I put it this way?

This is a copy of the offer. The Japanese name the appraised value, and
the sale price. The sale price is 1:7 per cent, a little less than 2 per cent, lower
than the appraisal. After a property was withdrawn it was just withdrawn on
that basis. .

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. I do not know whether that was quite clear Mr. Shears. Probably we
can clear it up with a question or two. Now the offer which was finally accepted
was 741 properties all of which belonged to Japanese?—A. Yes.

Q. They were sold for a total of $856,256?—A. Definitely.

Q. And some other properties were taken out of the larger group because
they were not the property of Japanese?—A. Yes, and also 41 properties that
belonged to Japanese which we could not convey were taken out because they
belorigod to deceased persons and they were not sold to the Veterans’ Land Act
people,

Q. Some of those would be included in those 50 that you said were not sold?
—A. I think they have all been sold.

Q. Let us confine ourselves to the 741 that were-sold. An appraisal was
made by the superintendent of the Soldiers’ Settlement Board—A. By the
Soldiers’ Settlement Board of Canada, I think that is the title.

Q. Yes, and their appraisal of those 741 properties was exactly how much?
I think you gave the figure yesterday of $847,0007—A. Yes, $847,878.

Q. We are clear on that—A. That would be right, yes.

Q. Now had your office made any appraisal apart from the appraisal of
the Soldiers’ Settlement Board?—A. Not at the time the offer was being dealt
with. The advisory committee made some examination into some of the
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properties before they recommended the acceptance of the offer. That was a
valuation they made then.

Q. May I inquire if there was any general valuation made by your office
before this offer was received or made by the Veterans’ Land Act officials?—
A. There was not.

Q. Now you say there was a check made of some properties. How many
properties were checked as to valuation before the acceptance of the offer?—
A. 1 think 17 or 18 properties.

Q. 17 or 18 out of 7417—A. Yes.

Q. And remembering apart from the fact this was a cash offer and a bulk
offer, were there any other reasons you would like to mention which would
lead your office to recommend government acceptance of this offer? I want to
get the whole picture and to make sure you are perfectly fair—A. This offer
was negotiated between the advisory committee of the custodian and the com-
mittee of the Department of Veterans’ Land Affairs. Representatives of the two
committees sat together and as a result of their negotiations the advisory
committee under Judge Whiteside recommended to the custodian that, in view
of all the circumstances, the purpose for which those lands were required, the
fact that the custodian would be relieved of a certain amount of carrying
charges, the offer should be accepted and that offer was finally accepted.

Q. Those are the points I mentioned, and I take it we have before us all
the factors that led to the acceptance of this offer?—A. Yes.

Q. You mentioned yesterday a figure of assessment of $1,250,940. I take it
that figure is the assessment of the 741 properties.—A. Yes.

Q. Now, have you within your knowledge information as to the terms on
which these properties were then sold from the Soldiers’ Settlement Board to
the veterans?—A. That is not our department of course, but I am advised that
when the director of the Veteran’s Land Act sells these properties to a returned
man he sells them at precisely the amount which he paid the custodian plus any
improvements that they themselves have made. That is to say the Veterans’
Land Act bought the property for $2,000 and the returning soldier would buy
the property for $2,000 from the director of the Veterans’ Land Act. I think
I am right in that statement but of course it is not my department.

Q. Well you feel quite certain about it and perhaps the chairman could
arrange to have that information confirmed. Now, let us go on to the distribution
of the proceeds. You start with a certain valuation made by the Soldiers’
Settlement Board. When you started to break down the proceeds of the $836,000
among the Japanese owners on what basis did you proceed?—A. Originally the
foer' was for that number of properties for that sum of money, giving an
itemized list of all properties on which they were bidding. For example our
file number 11,060, Veterans’ Land Act number 75, the Japanese name was
S. Sukawa. Their appraisal of that property was $1,158. Then if you added
up all the totals of the 700 odd parcels it would have come to $857,000 all from
the first offer. The sale was then computed to the exact decimal point because
of the fact that the advisory committee recommended acceptance of the
$850,000 as against the valuation of $867,000.

Q. To put it briefly the distribution of the proceeds among the Japanese was

based on the appraisal of the Soldiers’ Settlement Board and worked out on a

pro rata basis against the total price?—A. Correct.

Q‘. What steps did you take to notify the Japanese concerned of that
appr@sal?—'—A, There was a statement, sent out to each Japanese showing the price
at which his property had been sold to the director of the Veterans’ Land Act.
On the same statement there would show the disbursements, that is his share of
the taxes and fire insurance and I think that would be about all.

Q. And how many owners were there in the 741 properties? Were they all
individually owned?—A. I would say ves. There would be some slight difference

)
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because there would be joint interests in a few cases but I would say approxi-
mately 700 owners would be concerned.

Q. Did you have replies from them?—A. I would say in the Vancouver office
we might have had 300 letters of complaints. That, of course, may or may not
indicate that all the people who wished to complain did so because when we
received these letters of complaints we replied, stating as I have mentioned before,
that their letter was being filed for record purposes. I think it is a fact that the
Japanese population as a whole, living in these camps, would understand that if
one Japanese complained and received that letter they would all receive such
letters and they might not have troubled to write us. I do not know whether that
is the explanation but it could be.

Q. How does that number of complaints with reference to the total number
of persons affected, compare with the record of complaints that were received
regarding the disposal of other types of Japanese property?—A. Well, I am
frank in saying here that practically all complaints which have been received
have been in connection with these farm lands which were sold to the director of
the Veterans’ Land Act.

Q. I take it to be a fact from what you said yesterday that your office really
had not any particular part to play beyond aceepting this particular offer. Tt
was a matter of government policy.—A. It was a matter of negotiation between
these two government departments and our local Vancouver office did not enter
into the picture in regard to the sales of that group as we did in regard to other
properties.

Q. The decision was a government decision?—A. Yes.

Q. A matter of government pelicy. Just a question in passing. Of the
owners of the 741 properties would you know how many were naturalized British
subjects resident in Canada?—A. No, I am sorry.

Q. You did not keep any records?—A. In so far as our department is con-
cerned in administering the affairs of the Japanese there was no distinction. An
evacuee was not an enemy and whether he was a national or naturalized or
Canadian born. It made no difference to the administration of his property and
the disposal of it when liquidation came into effect.

Q. That answer would apply to all property of persons of the Japanese
race?—A. All evacuees. :

Q. There was no distinction drawn between their status in any respect?—
A. No, there were of course some Japanese classed as enemies but I am speaking
of evacuees.

Q. Have all the owners of the 741 properties now received the proceeds of the
sales or in some cases are the proceeds still held by the custodian?—A. The
overall picture at the moment is this, that we have approximately 1,600 accounts
which have credit balances. They are being sent out just as fast as they can
be sent out. They are not being held for any reason at all. In some cases we
have sent out money to a Japanese and the cheque has been returned saying tha}t
he does not wish to accept it and so that money of course goes back to the credit
of his account. :

Q. You are speaking of the overall picture?—A. Yes.

Q. When you speak of 1,600 accounts?—A. Yes.

Q. I am speaking only of the persons intitled to sale proceeds from the sale
of the 741 properties.—A. I could not give you that proportion but as I say
there are credit balances for 1,600 Japanese. -

Q. That is another subject to which T would like to come back a little
later. You cannot, however, from the knowledge of your records now, tell me
how many cases of owners of the 741 properties have received_in full the proc_eeds
of the sale of their parcel—A. No, I can only say that the majority have received
their money.
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Q. And amongst them how many do you think have refused to accept it?—
A. I think about 30 or 40.

Q. Thirty or 40 out of the majority?—A. Yes, that number returned their
cheques.

The Vice-CuamrMAN: Ten per cent roughly.

The WiTtNess: Yes.

By Mr. Probe:

Q. Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask a few questions to follow up what
Mr. Fleming has been asking with respect to the land held at one time by
Japanese nationals, or naturalized Japanese. -

Mr. FreminGg: You had better not call them Japanese nationals.

Mr. Prose: No, I will change that to persons of the Japanese race.
Yesterday, in the evidence, the witness accepted a phrase with respect to this
land. Perhaps I should ask him whether he did accept the statement with respect
to this land but the suggestion was it was already burned out in the sense that
1t was no longer productive farming land. Might I have his comment on that
for the record to-day because I would like to get that matter cleared up?
That is as to whether or not it was or was not fit for production—A. As I
stated yesterday I am not a farmer and I merely stated that I have been
advised that a number of these properties were in the class of what was termed
burned out lands. I do not think that means they were entirely non-productive.
I think by putting in more fertilizer and that sort of thing the land would
still be productive. That is somewhat of a technical matter and beyond mv
knowledge but this information has come to us in a general way. - .

Q. In general would you say these lands were suitable for further farming?
That is, they are still suitable for the use of the soldiers to whom they were
ultimately sold. —A. I would say that was true, but as I say that would be a
question for a person who understood agriculture more than I do.

Q. As far as burned out valuation is concerned the suggestion came from
one of the members of the committee rather than from the custodian’s depart-
ment.—A. No, that statement, as a matter of fact, has been a general state-
ment in and around the Vancouver area and the statement did not come from
the committee. I am just saying that is generally aceepted in Vancouver and
the Fraser Valley area that many of the Japanese farms would have been
termed as burned out, but they were still producing and I take it can still be
productive.

Q. Would you be able to inform us as to what is the general nature of the
production of the lands that were occupied by these evacuees from their own
production or production that has been obtained since they left? I am not as
familiar with that area as would be the member from Fraser Valley. I do not
know the country as a wholg.-—A. They are what might be called small berry
farms, raspberries, strawberries and so on, but Mr. Cruickshank might be able
to say something there. =

Mr. CRUICKSHANK :
through.

By Mr. Probe:

Q. Well, was the land productive generally, following the removal of
these persons from the Fraser Valley? Was it kept in production?—A. Very
little of it went out of production. Arrangements were made by the Japanese
themselves before their evacuation, in co-operation generally with the Pacific
Co—opc;’atwc Union, that white tenants be placed on the farms. Sometimes
the white persons were on the land even before the Japanese were evacuated.

Broadly speaking, all the farms h ithin ¢
s e s had some tenant placed upon them within a

I certainly intend to say something when you are
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Q. That wduld be covered by some form of cropping arrangement whereby
the evacuee would receive his proper share of the produce of that farm?—A. In
all cases, I think I might say, it was an outright sale of the crop for that
particular year. That is to say the Japanese contacted a white tenant and
the white tenant said “I will pay you $600,” for instance, “for the use of your
property and for the growing of the crop”. From that time on, of course, the
white tenant had to cultivate it and had to take the crop off.

Q. Might I ask further, in connection with these holdings, was the farm
machinery which had been part of each farm left on the farm when the Japanese
evacuee left?—A. The farm machinery stayed with the land for the use of the
white tenant during the term of his lease. That lease was for one year and 1n
most cases it was renewed for the following year. It was 1'ongw(‘d up until
the time when these properties were sold to the director of the Veterans’ Land
Act. At that time the tenants who were on the land became the tenants of the
Veterans’ Land Act. : ) ' :

Q. Was the machinery valued separately in connection with the appraisal
that was made for the purpose of selling out their interests?—A. The offer of
the Veterans' Land Act was for the real estate only, the buildings and so on,

, not the equipment.

- ICll?tAtnd sfch I?t,hings as machinery, livestock, autmnobiles, and trucks would
be disposed of through ordinary channels other than those involved in t‘}us
arrangement between the custodian and the Soldiers’ Settlement Board?—
A. Those items were vested in the custodian and were disposed of by the means
T outlined yesterday, that is advertising and calling for tenders or, if it was the
type of article that could be sold at auetion 1t was sold at auction.

" Q. With respect to the land, I presume the land was asked for by the
officials of the Veterans’ Land Act rather than offered by the custodian to the
Veterans’ Land Aet. I would just like to know whether your department
suggested to the Veterans’ Land Act that they buy these properties or whether
that came about with the offer?—A. I can only say in regard to this particular
offer, as already indicated, that it was the result of negotiations between the
two governmental departments and not at Vancouver. The Vancouver office
did not really come into the picture until after the deal had been C(_)'xls\-11111nate(1.

Q. That is the custodian is simply a third party in negotiations that
happened to take place between the Veterans’ Land Act or shall we say, the
secretary of state and the Department of Vct.c]'al)s’ Affairs. Those Wouldlb(‘
the two departments involved in those negotiations—A. My understanding
is that the deal originated, and of course it would naturally come from the
Department of Veterans’ Affairs. Knowing of these properties in the Fraser
Valley and considering it desirable that they should be held for returned soldiers,
I pre;ume the Department of Veterans’ Affairs would approach thq department
which had control of these lands by vesting at that particular time. Those
two departments entered into negotiations and the deal was considered by the
advisory committee and acceptance was made. It was only at that time that
the Vancouver office came into the picture for the purpose of the mechanics
of transferring the properties. : . .

Q. May I ask if the Department of Veterans Affairs rejected any parcels
beeause of the burned out feature? I presume they would have had their own
inspectors working on this?—A. No, all the properties on which they offered
except those which were withdrawn by the Custodian were sold. :

Q. Now, then, what was the total acreage that was bought out at this
price of $850,000 or is it $836,0007—A. I am afraid that on an acreage basis
I could not venture an opinion. 4 :

Q. You could not give me or the committee an idea of the average acreage
of the farms?—A. Yes, but there again, as T mentioned before in connection
with the average price of $1,158, one property was sold at $10,000 and another
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Z;f?gg).on{ hese farms were generally small farms, one acre, two acres, five acreg
Q. Would it be more correct to say they were small holdings rather th
farms and surely there is an average that we could strike with 1 A7 e
this?—A. They were small holdings, yes. e b air
; Q. Have you any comments to offer on what the assessment procedure is
in the Fraser Valley with respect to these lands because I judge since y .
have had numerous letters protesting the sale price, the owners h\v:u;.t(‘ci n? U'lf
than they got. Is there any basis for their complaint? How isfhok:#é« '('m('
worked out in the areas where this land was sold? In my city fm ‘(V‘V;illmln\
we have an arbitrary assessment for land and a 30 per cent 7valu‘1f‘inn]pf .
buildings—A. I would not be positive about this but I think land i; ';"Q‘Q"ml
at its full value and improvements are assessed at 50 or 60 per (“en'r H . '(':?C('
I would rather not make a positive statement in regard t(? t.hét s
Q. Mr. Jaenicke corrects me and tells me that in Saskatoh&van they set

ggta{:s}?g;stl(i%tmat 60 ]per cent of the value of the buildings—A. As a matter of
 they sc imes have an assessed value and a v - taxati y S
but Jélsti\\'l‘la.t the valuation is I do not know. B e oo
- In general would you say it is incorrect to s i
In ge you say 1t 1s incorrect to say that the custodian has sold
2?0;3112.1111551 Iagd to theuveterans in this proposition, the 741 par(‘Plﬂ‘?n }l:theftOIi(}
and gener 7 i v 4 s eh v
< generally was quite productive—A. The land was certainly
Q. I wonder why it was that there w erti
: hy s that e were 60 properties that were origina
&f;fergcli that were mthch‘f_m'n from the sale?—A. It has been indicated ebé?(if(lrnt{}]l:l}’;
hac? ;Opiﬁ)&%txfs “I'ere;]t\l\'lthdra\lln. Twenty were withdrawn because the Japanese
‘ 1terest. In cases there was a Japanese interest but the sustodian
was not in a position to deliver the title. = These properti - S e
since. They have been sold in mar e ot R
‘ 18 n § any cases by the official administrator i
co-operation with the custodian but in other cases bicon dole Bantly
S e et 0 In other cases they have been sold directly
) stodia: at a later time the custodian had clear v
titles. The reason they were wi ot 1l R R
s S hey were withdrawn was at that ti th i
not in position to deliver title. At I 7o bl i
: tio lelive . At a later date either the custods
official administrator was i iti v 1 A B
e, In a position to deliver the title and those properties
Q. Not necessarily to the Veterans’ Al i
S W nsar Agt,, eterans’ Land Act?—A. No, not necessarily to
Q. To private individuals.

mysg}?roggﬁlcnzﬂgﬁglﬁ Hl:g \(_;ilﬁirma?, I Wigllldklike to ask a couple of questions
g8 ; aser Valley. I would like to have as a ter ecord
the sale price by the custodian to th 1 el
by > custodie e Soldiers’” Settlement Board i
on the record in the case of each : ol
_ ; _ 8 ach parcel of land. In other words I we
fglgz ;hi;oe;%irpgﬁ}fg \t}}]f Japanisﬁg. Tge reason I want that is that ‘I‘fillzlitp}?elr?
- m : eterans’ Affairs Committee and interes in seeing tha
’gl%e] q%lo(} (}10 Ill\rgir:)to(s)houclid nﬁ)’t be allowed to exploit the \*eég‘grllei)t;’dbg;iszfglzgpti};ig
and for $1, and selling it to the veteran for $2,000. I wan e ex i
on each parcel of land bought from the J R e
~ e e lénd and‘ I‘ Japanese. I think too much has been
t la nd : ly sorry that the far
Saskatchewan are not familiar with th wod likiina beirade T
§ ‘ h t d farming husbandry 7
in the Fraser Valley. They will not k: S e g,
. P ks vhat we mean by bu
the province of British Columbia itm})w e i Padtbug g el
t | S ) nas quite a different meaning fr
instance, burned out lands in the i e S
I , bu la; province of Saskatchewan. B ,
lf?o:::eé Pljgvg}rll;ce of British Columbia in particular the berry farmu rir}secrilo(zu(fallletsrécdl
i Oinu,ct ings }as drought. 1 want to make this quite clear because nobody
Verg gt 0 sa%r that the Fraser Valley is burned out. Berry farming by the
y nature of it is intensified farming as everyone will appreciate. On the

il et
average berry farm fertilizer is used and I trust there are no representatives
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here of firms selling the stuff. If anybody knows anything about farming and
using chemical fertilizer they know that such fertilizer will eventually burn out
the land. In the Fraser Valley the average berry farm is a small farm. This
might be an Irish way of saying it, but the largest farm would not be over ten
acres and the average farm will have about five acres under cultivation. The
farm is very intensively farmed and as I have said it has to be kept in condition
by the use of chemical fertilizer. That is what we mean by burned out land or
farm land which has been mined. I made a statement, and I repeat it now, a
very large percentage of these farms in the Fraser Valley were burned out,
being over mined, because such fertilizers had been put on the land. In most
cases, of necessity, it was chemical fertilizer which was put on the land.
Nobody is here to dispute the fact that the Japanese were energetic and good
workers, and nobody is here, so far as British Coolumbia is concerned, at least, to
say they were not capable and efficient farmers, particularly in small areas. I
am sure Mr. Green will agree with me in that.

T am digressing slightly at the moment because too much attention has been
paid to a remark made by Mr. Probe yesterday, “How could they afford to buy
these frigidaires if the land was burned out?” I could give you one reason for
that. I know of one Japanese farmer who was working at the age of 94, seven
days a week; that is one of the reasons. They were able—while the land may

have been to a certain extent mined out—to buy frigidaires and such equipment
Incidentally, I may say a very small

because of their long hours of work.

percentage of them had frigidaires because a very small percentage of the
Japanese farmers had electricity on their farms. I was just using the word
as a term. However, the Japanese work from the time they are four years old
until they are ninety years of age, seven days a week. 2

I heard someone say, “What hours do they work,”? They work up to 18
hours a day. In my own municipality, gxd‘()ptlng some of tllﬁ(",’ methods of the
lawyers, I had a by-law passed to prohibit them working on hur’xday. By pure
pluff, T got away with it. They told me I h:u_l to go to the Lord’s Day Alliance
Act. You might just as well try to get somothmg out of one of these government
departments as to get something from the Lord’s Da}: Alliance Act. However,
1 bluffed it through and stopped them working on Sundays. It was for this
reason they were able to buy those thlpgﬁ.. They }\'orked lon_g'hom;s. ‘

Last year, we paid berry pickers in the province of British (v()lumbm as
much as we received for the berries in the previous year. We actually paid the
pickers as much as we received for the product. By working 18 hours a day, by
working all the members, of the family from the grandmothers to the grand-
children, the Japanese were able to do these things.

1 want to make that very clear. I do not want to dwell on the burned out
land. Any land must be kept up. I think everybody knows it.

I disagree with the witness as to the condition of the farms when the
Japanese vacated. ‘They were not properly farmed and had not been propeﬂy
farmed. I am speaking of 90 per cent of the farms. In the production of berries,
vou must keep your farm replanted and heavily fertilized to keep it up. These
farms were leased on a year-to-year basis. I leave it up to anyone of you;
do vou think anyone.is going to take a farm, go in and clean it up and replant
it when he is only there for a year? Those farms were not kept in condition
and are not in condition now.

As the Fraser Valley has been mentioned, and as most of these Japanese
berry farms are in my riding, I must say that now they are just pieces of land.
Th(‘j’ are not farms in most cases. They have grown up with willows, and to
take them over would be like taking over a piece of raw land. They would
have to be cleaned up. :

The CuamrMAN: What would be the average size?
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Mr. CruicksHANK: Ten acres. There is one farm which has been sold in
the Mission area. I understand it has been sold for a monastery. It is not
worth $100 for the whole farm, as a farm. The Japanese, apparently being so
accustomed in their own country, were capable and willing to farm the hillsides
and the mountain slopes. The average berry farm, I am confident, would not
equal ten acres. Although the property in question might be over ten acres—it
might have 25 acres according to the tax notice—there would only be seven
. acres of that land under cultivation. I think that is general throughout the
province of British Columbia. It certainly applies to the Fraser Valley. The
assessment roll might indicate there was more property. but only a small
percentage of that is actually under cultivation.

Mr. JaeNIckE: What is the customary rental basis for these farms in that
district?

Mr. CRUICKSHANK: Previous to this evacuation of the Japanese, it was very
seldom a berry farm was rented. I do not think there would be half a dozen
berry farms rented in the province of British Columbia. It is not practical
because of the limited scale of operations in berry farming.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further questions?

Mr. Green: What about the difference between the assessed value and the
appraisal value?

Mr. CruicksHANK: In the Fraser Valley, there are about 17 municipalities
affected. Each municipality has a different scale of assessment. Some munici-
palities have never assessed or taxed improvements at all. Let me put it another
way. The city of New Westminster, I think, is the only city of any size in
Canada which does not tax improvements. I do not think you could arrive at
a valuation of farm land from assessed value. Some municipalities adopt the
principle of a high mill rate and a low assessment, and other municipalities adopt
the principle of a low mill rate and a high assessment; that is common.

Mr. ProBe: You have no assessment commission?

Mr. CruicksHANK: Each municipality sets its own assessment. I think
that was true until this year. I think the Goldberg report suggests there be a
new assessment made by the provincial authorities for school purposes; that is
for the 1947 assessment. I know nothing about it. I have had mostly municipal
farm experience and I would say you cannot arrive at a valuation of the land
on the basis of the assessment. I believe that is so in most municipalities across
Canada.

There was one statement made by the witness with which I disagree.
said there was an assessed value and a value for taxation purposes.
with that entirely.

The WIrNess: I say there are assessment notices without doubt which
are in our office which have the assessed valuation and the valuation for taxation
purposes. I would not say that was so in the Fraser Valley, but there are such
notices.

Mr. FLEmiNG: In some cases there are exemptions?

Mr. CruicksHANK: Oh well, there may be exemptions but I am saying it is
not possible to have an assessed value and a value for taxation in the province
of British Columbia. I am speaking from memory. Until this year, we were
only permitted to tax 50 per cent of the improvements; I think 50 per cent which
was the maximum. This year it was raised to 75 per cent. :

I am speaking for the veterans who are acquiring these farms, have acquired
them or are .acqulring them. They are not able to enter into a discussion as to
what we paid—when I say “we” I mean the Department of Veterans Affairs
paid the Japanese for the land. We are determined the government shall not
exploit those prices on the resale to the veterans. If there is an adjustment to

He
I disagree

¢
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be made—I want this to be put on the record to be perfectly clear—I do not
think there is anybody in the Fraser Valley who wants to see any injustice done
to those Japanese. Whether they were paid enough, I do not know. I do not
think anybody else can tell. I do know the men who were on the advisory board.
Judge Whiteside, is one of the men of whom I am speaking and Mr. Menzies 18
another. Mr. Menzies has lived in the centre of the Japanese area for thirty
years. I happen to be the person who recommended Mr. Menzies as a men_lber
of that board. He is a capable man in real estate. He is a man who resided
right in the area. I presume he gave a fair valuation.

There is such a vast difference between the value of farm land, as between
1942 and 1947 inany part of British Columbia, that to-day’s values cannot be
taken into consideration. Values have trebled in the Fraser Valley. Land
which sold in 1942 for $150, which was considered a good price at that time, has
sold this year for $600. In so far as farm values are concerned, there can be
no comparison between 1942 and 1947.

I do want that point to be clear. When I referred to burnt out land, that
is common in any part of Canada, and particularly in connection with intensive
farming. For instance, your Niagara Peninsula is one of the finest districts In
Canada, and certainly the only good district you have in Qntario, but it would
be burnt out if you did not constantly keep that property up. It is the same
wherever you have intensive farming.

Mr. Jaenicke: How can you recondition that land?

Mr. Creaver: By adding humus to the land.

Mr. Freming: May I have a couple of minutes to ask a few questions in
connection with this matter?

The CramrMan: I caught Mr. Cote’s signal, so you will have a couple of
minutes and Mr. Cote will be the last.

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. Mr. Shears, do you know who made the valuation on behalf of the
Soldiers’ Settlement Board?—A. No, I do not. It was the Soldiers’ Settlement
Board valuators, that is the only title T have.

Q. We will have to get that from that department, then?—A. Yes.

Q. You mentioned that you have had valuations made of 17 of the 741
properties. I presume that was as a sort of check against the offer, is that
correct?—A. The Advisory Committee had that check made.

Q. Who made the valuation of the 17 properties?—A. The members of the
committee themselves, Mr. MacKenzie and Mr. Menzies.

Q. Did they take along an independent valuator?—A. I could not say.
They reported back to the committee that they had appraised 17 properties
and they brought the result to the committee.

Q. Have you those results?—A. I am not sure V\jhether I have @hem here,
but those valuations they brought back to the committee were all higher than
the Soldiers’ Settlement appraisal. 3

Q. Within what area were those 17 properties located?
checked the spot valuations throughout the group of lands. ;

Q. Then, you can furnish the committee with the particular properties, the
valuations made by the committee in each case?—A. Yes. : :

Q. And you are gong to do that along with these other items for which
Mr. Cruickshank has asked, namely, the settled purchase price of each property?
—A. Yes. b’ ; - :

Q. You mentioned later there were 60 additional properties sold. Did T
understand you correctly?—A. There was what was called an addition to this
number of properties and that was also sold on the same basis, that is to say,

A. They just

it was the Soldiers’ Settlement appraisal and the properties were sold exactly
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at the same percentage differential, less than 2 per cent of the valuation. So
you could put the whole deal together.

Q. That is to say, these properties were all sold to the one private purchaser,
is that correct?—A. They were sold to the Veterans’ Land Act, g second offer,
an additional offer, I will call it.

Q. And the basis was precisely the same?—A. Precisely the same, yes.

Mr. ProBe: That is not the way I understood your answer.
By Mr. Fleming:

Q. That is not what I have noted when Mr. Probe was questioning you.
You said they were sold to private purchasers.—A. They were properties with-
drawn from the Veterans’ Land Act. There were 60 odd properties withdrawn,
20 did not belong to the Japanese and 40 have been advertised and sold either
by the custodian or the administrator.

By Mr. Cruickshank:
Q. Is it not correct that some of these

direct, themselves?—A. No,
erties sold by the Japanese,

properties were sold by the Japanese
not these particular properties. There were prop-
but not these particular properties.

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. We have it straight; there were 60 sold through your office to private
purchasers?—A. Forty-one.

Q. What was the valuation of those properties on which you based your
selling price; how was it made?—A. They were independent appraisals which
I had made in line with the valuations which were made on the other 900
properties to which I referred yesterday.

Q. They were made by independent valuators in the
yes.

Q. Were appraisals made on any of those by appraisers for the Soldiers’
Settlement Board?—A. I did not catch your question. Originally in the offer,
they had been valued by the Soldiers’ Settlement people, but they were with-
drawn and then they were valued—

Q. Then. you had a fresh appraisal made of them?—A. Yes, we had a fresh
appraisal made.

Q. Can you give us a list of the forty-one properties with the two appraisals,
the first appraisal by the Soldiers’ Settlement Board and the second appraisal
made by your independent appraiser?—A. Yes, that is quite easily available,
except, I would say this, rather than give the two appraisals we could give the
prices at which the properties were sold.

Q. To give the committee the complete picture then, would you submit a
list of the 41 properties with the three figures opposite each, the first appraisal
by the Soldiers’ Settlement Board, the second appraisal made by your office’s
independent appraisers and third, the selling price in each case?—A. Yes, I can
give you the first two right here and will secure from Vancouver, the second
appraisal—I can give the Soldiers’ Settlement appraisal and T can give you the
custodian’s selling price,

Q. It would be better to give it to us complete,

Mr. Case: T had a suggestion to make in connection with a question asked
by Mr. Cruickshank. He has asked for a list of the properties, their values
and so on, and there have been some questions asked about the average number
of acres per farm. Would it be helpful to have the acreage of each of the
properties?

Mr. CruicksHANK: I presumed that would be on the list of properties?

The Wrrness: I would not be able to give you the acreage.

area?—A. In the area,

would it not?
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7 rties listed 2 - the lines as
The CuamMan: If you want the 741 properties listed along the lines
outlined by Mr. Fleming, it is within your power to ask for it—
Mr. CruicksHANK: That is exactly what I do want. : :
" : . : O y anNSwWwer r1ve v
The CuamMmAN: I do not know whether you heard H“, answer gl\f);:l %‘(,
2 ; S 1 | ( 3 i ere ‘\_S
Mr. Shears. He said all the 741 properties sold to the DVA were re-sc
the veterans at exactly the same price. i o
Mr. CruicksHANK: With all due deference to you, that is 11{;_(} ]‘l'( ([‘(1;( il]:’
to tlIoAfar'ts which T have. I am not saying Mr. Shears is responsible ic
Dopqrtmont of Veterans Affairs, that is out of his jurisdiction.
The CHAIRMAN: The committee desires the 7417 : : :
Mr. FreminGg: Yes, and that can be compared with the witness from the
Department of Veterans Affairs. eman
i 1 3 ~ N O y 36 o r l - ) 3 S8
The CuARMAN: Gentlemen, just before you lutur, would it | 11(11 pat
meet this afternoon? Is it your pleasure to do so, ul}lu'i\l\'m. We \t\_m o
il tiext : ' in favour of  meetings while the
1 b week ¢ not, as a rule, in favour of holding g
until next week. I am not, as ¢ : u 2 Up R
is in sessi e stated my position on that on . i
House is in session. I have stated m; . o1 i 10 A
occasion in other committees. If it is your wish we should meet this afternoon,
we could meet again at four o’clock. e e
Mr. FLeminG: I doubt very much now if we are going to finish vAﬂll_ 1{(,{‘1‘.
to-day. Of course, that may not be a reason why we should not meet this afte
noon, but there are a lot of other matters to be covered yet. : 7
The Crammax: Then, we will adjourn until Monday morning at eleven
o’clock.
The committee adjourned at 1.05 p.m. to meet again on Monday, May

1947, at 11.00 a.m.
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